
 

General Purposes Committee

Monday 15 October 2018 at 6.00 pm
Boardrooms 3 - 5 - Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, 
Wembley, HA9 0FJ

Membership:

Members Substitute Members
Councillors: Councillors:
M Butt (Chair)
McLennan (Vice-Chair)
Agha
Colwill
Farah
Hirani
Krupa Sheth
Tatler

Aden, S Choudhary, Kabir, Knight, Miller, M Patel and 
Southwood

Councillors:
Kansagra and Maurice 

For further information contact: James Kinsella, Governance Manager 
Tel: 020 8937 2063, Email: James.Kinsella@brent.gov.uk

For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit:

democracy.brent.gov.uk

The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting



2

Notes for Members - Declarations of Interest:
If a Member is aware they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business, 
they must declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes 
apparent and must leave the room without participating in discussion of the item. 
If a Member is aware they have a Personal Interest** in an item of business, they must 
declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent.
If the Personal Interest is also significant enough to affect your judgement of a public 
interest and either it affects a financial position or relates to a regulatory matter then after 
disclosing the interest to the meeting the Member must leave the room without participating 
in discussion of the item, except that they may first make representations, answer questions 
or give evidence relating to the matter, provided that the public are allowed to attend the 
meeting for those purposes.

*Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:
(a) Employment, etc. - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 

for profit gain.
(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of expenses in 

carrying out duties as a member, or of election; including from a trade union. 
(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between the 

Councillors or their partner (or a body in which one has a beneficial interest) and the 
council.

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.
(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or longer.
(f) Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in which the 

Councillor or their partner have a beneficial interest.
(g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of 

business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the securities 
exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or of 
any one class of its issued share capital.

**Personal Interests:
The business relates to or affects:
(a) Anybody of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management, 
and:

 To which you are appointed by the council;
 which exercises functions of a public nature;
 which is directed is to charitable purposes;
 whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or policy (including a 

political party of trade union).
(b) The interests a of a person from whom you have received gifts or hospitality of at least 

£50 as a member in the municipal year; 
or
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-
being or financial position of:

 You yourself;
 a member of your family or your friend or any person with whom you have a close 

association or any person or body who is the subject of a registrable personal 
interest. 



3

Agenda

Item Page

1 Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members 

2 Declarations of interests 

Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, the nature 
and existence of any relevant disclosable pecuniary or personal interests 
in the items on this agenda and to specify the item(s) to which they 
relate.

3 Deputations (if any) 

To hear any deputations received from members of the public in 
accordance with Standing Order 67. 

4 Minutes of the previous meeting 1 - 4

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on Thursday 2 
August 2018 as a correct record.

5 Matters arising (if any) 

To consider any matters arising from the minutes of the previous 
meeting. 

6 Recruitment and Retention Payments for Children and Young 
People's Social Workers 

5 - 10

To receive a report from the Strategic Director of Children & Young 
People updating the Committee on the current challenges in recruiting 
and retaining key social work roles within the Children and Young 
People’s (CYP) department along with the resultant budget pressure and 
detailing proposals as to how these can be addressed to complement 
other measures already in place.

7 Appointments to Sub-Committees / Outside Bodies 

To consider any appointments needing to be made in relation to General 



4

Purposes Sub Committees.

Members are asked to note that details of any appointments to be 
considered will tabled at the meeting.

8 Any other urgent business 

Notice of items to be raised under this heading must be given in writing to 
the Head of Executive and Member Services or his representative before 
the meeting in accordance with Standing Order 60.

9 Exclusion of Press and Public 

There are currently no items listed that will require the exclusion of the 
press or public.

 Please remember to set your mobile phone to silent during the meeting.
 The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 

members of the public.



LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
Thursday 2 August 2018 at 5.30 pm

PRESENT: Councillors M Butt (Chair), McLennan (Vice-Chair), Agha, Farah, Hirani, 
Kansagra (as substitute for Councillor Colwill), Southwood (as substitute for Councillor 
Krupa Sheth) and Tatler

Also present: Councillors M Patel

1. Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Colwill and Krupa Sheth, 
with Councillors Kansagra and Southwood present as substitute members.

2. Declarations of interests 

There were no declarations of interests made by Members.

3. Deputations (if any) 

There were no deputations received.

4. Minutes of the previous meeting 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the previous meeting, held on Tuesday 17 July 
2018, be approved as an accurate record.

5. Matters arising (if any) 

There were no matters arising.

6. Voluntary Redundancy Policy 

Debra Norman (the Council’s Director of Legal and HR) introduced the report which 
recommended the adoption of a Voluntary Redundancy (VR) Policy and the 
implementation of a VR process to inform the next round of restructures and staff 
reductions to meet saving targets. She explained that the purpose of the scheme 
was to enable savings to be made via voluntary rather than compulsory redundancy 
as far as possible as making someone redundant could incur a high cost to the 
organisation. The scheme was expected to have a positive impact on employee 
engagement as staff could volunteer to leave and create an opportunity for a junior 
colleague to be promoted, especially in cases when it had been planned to delete 
the job role of the latter in an upcoming restructure. Carolyn Downs (the Council’s 
Chief Executive) added that a similar approach had been adopted when the 
restructure of the Regeneration and Environment Department had taken place and 
feedback had been positive.     



2
General Purposes Committee - 2 August 2018

If the VR policy was to be approved, the scheme would be open for applications 
from 3 August 2018 to 28 September 2018, following which cases would be 
considered at Departmental Management Team (DMT) meetings and would be 
forward to the Council Management Team (CMT) for a final approval. 

In relation to the Equality Impact Assessment of the Voluntary Redundancy Policy, 
Ms Norman pointed out that while the scheme was designed in such a way that it 
would be beneficial for all age groups, older employees were likely to have longer 
service, which, combined with early payment of unreduced pension for those 55 
years or more, could have an impact on the application of the affordability test in the 
Policy. Nevertheless, the Policy could be justified as set out in the Equality 
Assessment as its ultimate aim would be to deliver savings with volunteers where 
possible.  In response to a question about differences between male and female 
employees, Ms Norman said no particular group would be disadvantaged as 
payments would depend on age and length of service. CMT would receive a further 
Equality Assessment when considering the impact on equality once individual 
applications had been made.  

Members asked questions that related to mechanisms preventing people from 
leaving Brent and returning to the local authority at a later stage. Ms Downs said 
that anyone who had taken advantage of the scheme would not be allowed to be 
employed by the Local Authority for a period following their departure. Furthermore, 
if an employee volunteered for redundancy and started a new local authority job in 
up to four weeks after leaving, they would be required to return the redundancy sum 
the Council had paid them. 
 
Althea Loderick (the Council’s Director of Resources) noted that the Policy was 
expected to improve service planning as employees would be aware of restructures 
earlier and would be able to take an advantage of the scheme. As far as the 
calculations of payments were concerned (paragraph 3.2 of the report on page 6 of 
the Agenda pack), Ms Loderick said that these could be enhanced, but the multiple 
had to be kept in order to maintain the differentiation between the different age 
categories.  

RESOLVED that: 
(i) The contents of the Voluntary Redundancy Policy report, be noted; 

 
(ii) The Voluntary Redundancy Policy set put in Appendix 1 to the report 

approved; 

(iii) The implementation of a voluntary redundancy process commencing on 
3 August 2018 be approved; 

(iv) The Chief Executive be authorised to determine whether a voluntary 
redundancy exercise should be implemented in accordance with the 
Policy on future occasions; and 

(v) An update report, containing information on the number of employees 
who had taken advantage of the Voluntary Redundancy Policy, be 
presented at a future meeting of the General Purposes Committee. 



3
General Purposes Committee - 2 August 2018

7. Appointments to Sub-Committees / Outside Bodies 

The Committee noted that an update on membership of this Brent Pension Board 
would be provided at the meeting on 27 September 2018.

8. Any other urgent business 

None.

The meeting closed at 5.50 pm

COUNCILLOR MUHAMMED BUTT
Chair





General Purposes Committee
15th October 2018

Report from the Strategic Director 
of Children and Young People

REPORT TITLE: Recruitment and Retention Payments for 
Children and Young People’s Social Workers.

Wards Affected: All
Key or Non-Key Decision:
(only applicable for Cabinet, Cabinet Sub 
Committee and officer decisions)

N/A

Open or Part/Fully Exempt:
(If exempt, please highlight relevant paragraph 
of Part 1, Schedule 12A of 1972 Local 
Government Act)

Open

No. of Appendices: None
Background Papers: None

Contact Officer(s):
(Name, Title, Contact Details)

Nigel Chapman Operational Director Integration 
and Improved Outcomes
Tel: 0208 937 4456
Email: Nigel.Chapman@brent.gov.uk

1.0 Purpose of the Report

1.1 To appraise the Committee of the current challenges in recruiting and retaining 
key social work roles within the Children and Young People’s (CYP) department 
and the resultant pressure on the CYP budget. To detail proposals as to how 
these can be addressed to complement other measures already in place.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 General Purposes committee is asked to approve the proposed arrangements, 
set out in detail in paragraphs 4.1 – 4.3, noting their time limited implementation 
in order to assess their impact. The proposals are:

 To introduce a one-off, £5,000 payment to newly recruited permanent social 
work managers, social work practice consultants and senior social workers 
in hard to recruit to teams within the Localities and LAC and Permanency 
Services, on satisfactory completion of a probationary period. 

 To introduce a retention payment of £3600 to the social work managers and 
social work practice consultant posts, payable after 36 months in role and 
on a recurring 36 month cycle, subject to annual review of market 
conditions. Senior social workers currently receive a retention payment 
therefore no change is required to these roles.



 To allow the department the discretion to provide relocation package 
support to key posts, up to a maximum of £5,000 in individual cases.

2.2 That authority is delegated to the Strategic Director, CYP, in consultation and 
regular review with the Director of Legal and HR as detailed in this report, to 
determine how recruitment and retention payments are offered across the 
department, with a continued focus on hard to recruit to posts.

3.0 Detail

3.1 A previous General Purposes Committee (March 2016) approved a request to 
continue to provide a market supplement to Children and Young People’s (CYP) 
social workers as a tool to support the department in retaining key frontline staff. 
The payments of £1200 p.a., paid monthly were reintroduced from April 2016 
for all Children and Young People’s social work qualified staff from salary range 
PO1-PO4. This continued payment, alongside other factors such as stable 
senior leadership, greater training and development opportunities and 
manageable caseloads for staff has helped create an upward trajectory in the 
number of permanent social workers on the SO2 – PO2 grades in the Localities 
and LAC and Permanency services from 65% in March 2016 to 72% as at 
September 2018. 

3.2 However significant structural difficulties remain in recruiting and retaining more 
experienced social workers and first line social work management staff. A 
realignment of CYP social work activity took place in January 2018 and, whilst 
there have been a number of benefits to frontline practitioners, recognised in 
the May 2018 Ofsted Inspection of Local Authority Children’s Services, it has 
not resulted in an increase in the number of experienced social workers and 
social work management roles being taken up by permanent staff. In contrast 
to the SO2-PO2 grades, as at September 2018 only 44% of experienced social 
workers and front line management posts are filled by permanent staff. 

3.3 The issue of sufficiency of suitably qualified children’s social work staff is 
recognised as a national issue that the DfE is seeking to address through new 
routes into social work and better development pathways for future managers. 
The profession is noted as an occupation that appears on the list of skills 
shortages to enable overseas recruitment to fill key vacancies. 

3.4 A screening exercise undertaken by CYP in June 2018, to research packages 
offered by other London children’s services, found the majority had an extensive 
offer in place to attract new staff, including at social work management level. 
For example:

 Barnet: a remuneration package of up to £49,000 for Social Workers 
(equivalent in Brent is up to £40,887 + £1200 retention) and up to 
£56,400 for Advanced Practitioners (equivalent in Brent is up to 
£47,541). Relocation package of up to £7,000.

 Barking and Dagenham: For posts that are hard to fill there is an 
enhanced benefits scheme that gives eligible social workers:

o A £5,000 welcome payment when they join.
o £15,000 commitment payment after 3 years’ service in a hard to 

recruit to team
o Two month paid sabbatical, to be taken at an agreed time, after 

four years’ service.



 Harrow: all social work qualified staff receive a £1500 pa retention 
payment. There is a £6k targeted retention package for hard to recruit to 
posts and a relocation package of up to £6k available. 

 Greenwich: all roles within services similar to Brent’s Localities and 
Looked After Children and Permanency services receive the following 
benefits:

o 10% of starting salary ‘Golden Hello’;
o Minimum 10% of salary annual retention payment, plus 

enhancements for frontline child protection teams;
o Travel costs worth £1k+, OR Essential car user car parking (close 

to the workplace);
o Royal Greenwich Keyworker housing (after being employed for 

six months, subject to application and meeting criteria)

It is important that Brent is not left behind in what is an increasingly competitive 
market place for good quality staff.

3.5 Experience from two 2018 recruitment campaigns highlighted the difficulty 
faced in recruiting experienced social worker and permanent management 
staff. Of the 12 vacant posts advertised only 3 have been filled. The vacant 
posts are filled by agency staff which increases staff budgetary pressures 
(currently approximately £1m within CYP) and mitigates against the 
consolidation of good social work practice.

3.6 Other activity is taking place to address the issue of recruitment and retention. 
A refreshed workforce development strategy is focused on creating long-term 
improvements, in line with the Council’s 2020 vision. The workforce strategy 
includes a wide range of activities, one of which was to review pay structures 
and evaluation schemes to ensure the Council can attract and retain people in 
hard to recruit and key roles. The strategy is reviewed quarterly for 
effectiveness by the CYP senior leadership team.

3.7 An action plan arising out of the workforce strategy included setting out how 
recruitment and retention could be enhanced.  A successful and well-managed 
programme to recruit newly qualified social workers is in place and a career 
development pathway established in order to ‘grow our own’ staff. The career 
development pathway will also enable talented staff to move through the 
management system at a faster pace.  To augment this, international 
recruitment of qualified social workers from Southern Africa and India will take 
place during 2019. The experience of previous international recruitment 
exercises in Brent and neighbouring authorities has demonstrated the ability of 
staff recruited from overseas to quickly move into more senior roles. Social 
Workers successfully recruited through this project will be employed on the PO1 
grade.

3.8 Another future development that aims to address the recruitment challenge is 
the Social Care apprenticeship that will present an opportunity for existing staff 
in unqualified social care roles such as Social Work Assistants to obtain 
qualifications that will be an additional supply source in years to come.  It is 
likely to be 12 months before universities are ready to take the first students 
and a further 3 years before the first apprentices are qualified through this route.

3.9 Whilst these and other measures will over time improve the situation, short-term 
measures are required to boost the number of permanent staff in key social 



work roles. The proposals as set out in section 4 below are based on the 
assumptions that funding will be met from within the CYP department, that it will 
lead to a reduction in cost pressures and that it will create a positive impact.

4.0 The Proposal

4.1 To introduce a one-off, £5,000 payment to newly recruited permanent social 
work managers (PO7), social work practice consultants (PO5) and senior social 
workers (PO3) in hard to recruit to teams within the Localities and LAC and 
Permanency Services, on satisfactory completion of a probationary period.  The 
teams to which this payment would apply are the East and West Locality 
Teams, the Brent Family Front Door, LAC and Permanency teams A-F and the 
Care Leavers Teams.  These are the teams with lower levels of permanent staff 
in the three roles, in comparison to other teams undertaking other similar work.

4.2 To introduce a retention payment of £3600 for new recruits to the PO7 and PO5 
posts, payable after 36 months in role and on a recurring 36 month cycle. Whilst 
the net payment to these staff over the 36-month period will equal that currently 
provided on a monthly basis to staff within the PO1-PO4 scale it is considered 
that a lump sum amount will have greater impact. These payments will be 
regularly reviewed, initially immediately after the first round of recurrent 
payments are made and then on an annual basis, to consider whether the 
market factors which currently make them essential in order to recruit to these 
posts still exist.

4.3 To allow the department the discretion to provide relocation package support to 
key posts, up to a maximum of £5,000 in individual cases. This may apply 
particularly to posts that will be recruited during 2019 from overseas. Evidence 
from a neighbouring borough who supported overseas recruits in this way 
reported greater levels of integration, job satisfaction, commitment to the 
organisation and strong levels of loyalty and therefore retention. The relocation 
support will be considered on a case by case basis by the Operational Director, 
Integration and Improved Outcomes in consultation with the Director of Legal 
and HR.  

5.0 Financial Implications 

5.1 There are no financial savings to be generated by providing incentives to recruit 
to social work positions as budgets have been set using an assumption of 100% 
permanent officers and no vacancies. Consequently any incentive scheme 
agreed needs to be funded from additional resources or within existing budgets.

5.2 However, the additional costs of agency staff can be avoided by recruiting 
permanently, thus reducing the cost pressure on the service. This additional 
cost pressure is estimated at £7.2k per year per agency staff member.

5.3 The cost of a six month scheme of golden hellos is estimated at £74k and 
mitigates costs to social worker teams of £92k. Existing staff do not receive any 
golden hellos. It is proposed to fund this six month scheme of golden hellos on 
a one-off basis from reserves in order that the scheme can be properly 
evaluated upon conclusion to determine the impact on recruitment. It is not 
considered affordable to offer this on a permanent basis and needs careful 
monitoring and consideration prior to offering the scheme again in the future.



5.4 The cost of introducing a £3600 incentive to retain new staff at the PO5 and 
PO7 grades after three years of service is estimated at £35k per annum. This 
sum would need to be identified from existing resources as it would be an 
annual cost. 

5.5 Current Children’s social workers on PO1 to PO4 grades currently receive a 
pensionable incentive of £1200 per year but those on PO5 to PO7 grades 
currently do not. The £3600 retention payment proposed for the PO5 to PO7 
grades would not be pensionable as it would be paid only after 3 years of 
service.

5.6 There is no relocation budget currently available. The £74k estimated cost of 
the six month scheme includes an estimate of the cost of relocations. Funding 
for relocations of future recruitment of overseas staff would require use of 
reserves. 

6.0 Legal Implications

6.1 Where a supplement is paid on top of the evaluated grade of a post the potential 
for equal pay claims arises. The council will need to demonstrate that there is 
a “material factor” which is neither directly nor indirectly sex discriminatory to 
avoid or defend such claims.  The state of the employment market, which may 
lead an employer to increase the pay of a particular job in order to attract 
candidates, may constitute an objectively justified economic ground for a pay 
disparity. Where a payment to an employee is on-going (as is proposed in 
respect of the £3600 payments) the payment must be kept under regular review 
to ensure that it only continues for as long as it is justified by material market 
factors.

7.0 Equality Implications

7.1 The public sector equality duty, as set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 
2010, requires the Council, when exercising its functions, to have “due regard” 
to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited under the Act, to advance equality of opportunity and foster 
good relations between those who have a “protected characteristic” and those 
who do not share that protected characteristic. The protected characteristics 
are: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation.

7.2 Having due regard involves the need to enquire into whether and how a 
proposed decision disproportionately affects people with a protected 
characteristic and the need to consider taking steps to meet the needs of 
persons who share a protected characteristic that are different from the needs 
of persons who do not share it. This includes removing or minimising 
disadvantages suffered by persons who share a protected characteristic that 
are connected to that characteristic.  

7.3 An Equality Impact Assessment was completed in respect of the proposals set 
out in this report and the analysis was based on the characteristics of ethnicity 
and gender as these were the two most significant types affected by the 
proposed changes. To ensure the analysis was sufficiently broad the analysis 
also included staff undertaking similar tasks from the Community Wellbeing 
department.



7.4 Gender:
 For the staff in the teams that are within the scope of the proposed changes 

between 82% and 86% are female, except 1 team where 100% are female.
 For the teams that are out of scope of the proposed changes:

o CYP - Between 80% and 92% are female, except 3 teams where 50% 
are female (and therefore 50% are male). 

o CWB - Between 67% and 88% are female, except 1 team where 100% 
are female AND 2 teams where 25% and 20% respectively are female.

 The sample sizes are relatively small given the limited number of roles being 
compared.

7.5 Ethnicity:
Information held corporately on this characteristic is more variable that makes 
firm analysis less achievable. From the information available the ethnicity of 
staff affected is equally distributed across the teams that are within and outside 
the scope of the proposals. 

The overall analysis is that the risks that the criteria for applying the proposed 
payments disadvantage persons with a protected characteristics is low based 
on ethnicity and medium based on gender.  However, it is considered that the 
market evidence included in this report, establishing that there is a material 
factor (namely market conditions for recruitment to the affected posts) justifies 
the pay disparity. 

8.0 Consultation with Ward Members and Stakeholders

Not Applicable (N/A)

9.0 Human Resources/Property Implications (if appropriate)
The Human Resources implications have been contained within the main body 
of the report above.

10.0 Next Steps

10.1 The next scheduled recruitment campaign will commence at the end of October 
2018 and, should the Committee approve these recommendations, they will be 
incorporated into the marketing materials. Monthly progress meetings to 
consider the impact of these initiatives have been set and the overall 
effectiveness of the proposed changes will be reviewed after 6 months and a 
report presented to the Corporate Management Team.  

10.2 Should the proposal be agreed, Human Resources will consider the demand 
pressures within other departments of the Council and the corporate 
implications where there are similar skills shortages in hard to recruit to posts.

Report sign off:  

Gail Tolley
Strategic Director of Children and 
Young People


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Recruitment and Retention Payments for Children and Young People's Social Workers

